
AMENDED AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

APRIL 9, 2019 
 

 
6:30 pm ~ Council Meeting 
Please note that action (including final action) may be taken on any or all of the 
following items: 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Approval of minutes from 
• March 26, 2019 meeting   

 
3. Approval of March 2019 bills 

 
4. Approval of agenda 

 
5. Public Comment regarding agenda items and consent agenda 

 
 Note: Regular City Council meeting agendas and council packets are posted on the City’s website 
to keep City residents informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the 
community.   This Public Comment time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on 
matters that are listed on this Council Meeting agenda.  Each speaker is allocated three (3) 
minutes to speak.  Speakers may not cede their time to another speaker. If your comments 
concern an item that is not on this agenda, please address the council during the public comment 
period at the end of the agenda. Comments should be limited to matters within the jurisdiction of 
the City. The City Council can only take action on matters that are on the Agenda but may place 
matters brought to their attention at this meeting on a future agenda for consideration. If you have 
documents to present to the City Council, please provide a minimum of eight (8) copies.             
 

6. Presentations 
 

A. The Moffat County Middle School 6th grade engineering class will be 
doing a presentation on the problem with plastics. 

    
7. Consent Agenda 

 
 
 



Note: The Consent Agenda consist of proposed actions on business matters which are 
considered routine and for which approval is based on previously approved City policy or 
practice. The Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion to “Approve the Consent 
Agenda” and Council Members will vote without debate.  Council Members may move to 
remove a Consent Agenda matter for any reason and request that it be handled separately for 
discussion and consideration. Matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed on the 
agenda as an item of “Other Business” for discussion and consideration.    

 
8.   Public Hearing 

  
9.  Other Business 

 
A. Resolution No. 9 (2019) ~ a resolution supporting the Grant Application 

for a Local Parks and Outdoor Recreation Grant from the State Board of 
the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of Breeze 
Park Development Project Phase II. 

 

B. Approval of YVEA Fiber Easement and authorization for the Mayor to 
sign on behalf of the City. 

  
10.   Staff Reports 

 
A. February & March 2019 monthly Police reports 
 

11.   City Manager/City Attorney Reports 
 

12.   Public Comment 
 

13.   Council Reports 
 

14.   Adjourn 
 



 

1 

 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 26, 2019 

MINUTES  

 

Mayor John Ponikvar brought to order at 6:30 p.m. the second regular meeting of the Craig City 

Council for the month of March 2019.   In addition to Mayor Ponikvar, those present were 

Councilmembers Chris Nichols, Jarrod Ogden, Andrea Camp, Tony Bohrer, Derek Duran. 

Councilman Joe Bird was absent. Staff present were City Manager Peter Brixius, Finance Director 

Bruce Nelson, City Attorney Sherman Romney, Building Official Marlin Eckhoff, Chief of Police 

Jerry Delong, Road and Bridge Director Randy Call, Water/Wastewater Director Mark 

Sollenberger, Parks and Recreation Manager Ryan Dennison and Deputy City Clerk Gina Duran. 

 

All participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the minutes from the 

February 26, 2019 meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the minutes from the 

March 11, 2019 special meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the agenda as 

presented.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

There was Public Comment given from resident Nadja Rider on the topic of monochloramine, 

asking if this topic would be discussed at this meeting.  

 

Rebecca Warren and Sherri Cure with Memorial Regional Health-Open Heart Advocates 

presented to council a Proclamation for approval proclaiming the week of March 24-30, 2019 as 

“No More Week”.  Councilman Ogden moved with a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve 

the proclamation proclaiming the week of March 24-30, 2019, as “No More Week”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Carol Taylor, Safe Care Provider & Connection 4 Kids member, and Trish Snyder with 

Connection 4 Kids presented to council a Proclamation to proclaim the month of April as the 

“Month of the Young Child”. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Duran 

to approve the proclamation proclaiming the month of April as the “Month of the Young Child”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Corporal Grant Laehr and Chief Jerry Delong with the City of Craig Police Department 

presented a Canine Team Proposal to council. Total 2019 costs are already budgeted for, will 

request the remaining expense in the 2020 budget process. 

 

Councilman Duran moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to approve the Consent Agenda 

which included the approval of a Special Events Permit from the Craig Chamber of Commerce 

for the Mule Deer Foundation Dinner to be held on April 27, 2019 at the Moffat County 

Fairgrounds Pavilion. No cause shown for denial.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 



 

2 

 

Finance Director Nelson presented for Public Hearing and Comment Ordinance No. 1084 (2019) 

~ a supplemental appropriation ordinance to carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments 

not accomplished in 2018 into the 2019 budget. Mayor Ponikvar opened the Public Hearing 

regarding Ordinance 1084. Finance Director Bruce Nelson offered comments regarding Ordinance 

1084. Being no other comments, the public hearing was closed.  

 

City Manager Brixius presented for Public Hearing and Comment Ordinance No. 1083 (2019) ~ 

an ordinance for the city of Craig, Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig 

Municipal Code to revise the employee step program and cost of living increase language. Mayor 

Ponikvar opened the Public Hearing regarding Ordinance 1084. City Manager Brixius offered 

comments regarding Ordinance 1083. Being no other comments, the public hearing was closed.  

 

Mayor Ponikvar presented the second reading for Ordinance No. 1084 (2019) ~ a supplemental 

appropriation ordinance to carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments not accomplished 

in 2018 into the 2019 budget. Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to 

approve the second reading of Ordinance 1084 (2019), a supplemental appropriation ordinance to 

carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments not accomplished in 2018 into the 2019 budget. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

  

Mayor Ponikvar second reading for Ordinance No. 1083(2019) ~ an ordinance for the city of Craig, 

Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig Municipal Code to revise the employee 

step program and cost of living increase language. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilwoman Camp to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 1083(2019), an ordinance 

for the city of Craig, Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig Municipal Code 

to revise the employee step program and cost of living increase language. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

Parks and Recreation Manager Dennison presented for approval, a bid for a 15-passenger van for 

the Parks and Recreation department from Cook Ford in the amount of $35,117.00. After further 

discussion, Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Duran to approve the 

purchase of a 15-passenger van for the Parks and Recreation department without a trade-in in the 

amount of $41,617.00 from Cook Ford. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Parks and Recreation Department  

½ Ton 4 Door Cab Short Bed Pickup in the amount of $22,940.00. Councilman Nichols moved 

with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the purchase of a ½ Ton 4 Door Cab Short Bed 

Pickup in the amount of $22,940.00 from Victory Motors. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Refuse department Cab & Chassis 

in the amount of $126,357.00. Mayor Ponikvar asked for a motion to approve the purchase of a 

Cab & Chassis for the Refuse department in the amount of $126,357.00. Councilman Nichols 

moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the purchase of a Cab & Chassis for the 

Refuse department in the amount of $126,357.00 from Faris Machinery. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Refuse department a Front Load 

Collection body in the amount of $126,985.00. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman Ogden to approve the bid for a Refuse department a Front Load Collection body from 

Faris Machinery in the amount of $126,985.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motions carried. 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for the following vehicles & 

equipment: 

 

 1 Ton Pickup Truck with single cab in the amount of $23,295.00. Councilwoman Camp 

moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the bid to Victory Motors for a 1 

Ton Pickup Truck with single cab in the amount of $23,295.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

  

 Portable Air Compressor in the amount of $15,990.00. Councilwoman Camp moved with 

a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve a bid for a Portable Air Compressor from Faris 

Machinery in the amount of $15,990.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 1 Ton Single Cab & Chassis with Dual Rear Wheels in the amount of $20,632.00. 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve a bid for a 1 

Ton Single Cab & Chassis with Dual Rear Wheels from Cook Ford in the amount of 

$20,632.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 Flatbed with Hoist for a1 Ton Cab & Chassis in the amount of $8,872.00. Councilman 

Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve a bid for a Flatbed with 

Hoist for a1 Ton Cab & Chassis from Kois Brothers in the amount of $8,872.00. Ayes: 6. 

Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 Three Wheel Broom Street Sweeper with Belt Conveyor in the amount of $237,684.00. 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve a bid for a 

Three Wheel Broom Street Sweeper with Belt Conveyor from Faris Machinery in the 

amount of $237,684.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Building Official Eckhoff presented to council the process of blighted property demolitions and 

asked for approval to pay for pre-demolition testing on blighted properties. Councilman Nichols 

moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the language in the demolition letters as 

presented that will go out to the property owner. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented to council Community Improvement Project Estimates 

that were put together by the Community Improvement Committee. Councilwoman Camp 

moved with a second by Bohrer to approve the appropriation of $150,682.50 for the Murdoch’s 

Island and Victory Way/4th Street Community Improvement projects. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

Water/Wastewater Director Sollenberger gave his monthly water/wastewater report for the month 

of February 2019. 

 

 



 

4 

 

Finance Director Nelson gave his month-end Financial Report for February 2019. 

 

City Manager Brixius provided information regarding 3 grants that the city has been awarded so 

far this year. We have received an $8,500.00 from the State Internet Portal Authority to create a 

phone ap with trail maps. $150,000.00 grant for Breeze Park & we were granted the DOLA Tier 

1 Grant in the amount of $200,000.00 for the Roundbottom Improvement Project. The Small 

Business Grant program is underway with information being sent out to all the businesses that 

generate sales tax this week with info on where to find information and how to apply. 

 

City Attorney Romney gave an update on the election to council. There was a discussion about 

when the new Council Members and Mayor will be sworn in. Romney gave the recommendation 

to wait and see what the certified results are before deciding on when to swear-in the new Council 

and Mayor. Also discussed the write-in ballot processes with the group. 

 

A quick presentation was given during public comment by Brycen Davis & Alison Jones about 

the Inspire to Lead Summit that’s available for kids 12-18 years of age. Other public comments 

were given by Ken Wergin who gave thanks to the City Staff and Council for taking action at 

tonight’s meeting, Dave Beard who asked for something to be done about speeding that’s taking 

place on Washington Street. Comments and questions regarding the use of Monochloramine were 

made/asked by Daryl Sparks, Dave Wallace, Cindy Porter, Nadja Rider, Janie Morely, Katie Lair 

and Are King. 

 

Rick Huggins, PhD, PE Drinking Water Engineer for SGM gave a presentation and answered 

questions that were asked during public comment regarding chloramine as treatment to comply 

with the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment minimum distribution system 

chlorine residual rule. 

 

At this time, City Council discussed various meetings and events in which they participated or that 

will take place soon. Councilman Nichols gave praise to the Road and Bridge department and all 

city staff for doing such a great job and working hard. Also thanked Peter for all he has done for 

the city so far. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to retire to executive session 

pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402 (4)(f) to discuss personnel matters concerning the City Attorney 

position. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

City Council members and City Attorney Romney returned from executive session. Mayor 

Ponikvar announced that City Council was back in open session. Councilman Ogden moved with 

a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve a 2-year employment agreement with the City Attorney 

Romney in the amount of $96,000.00 per year, 20 hours per week, which would include an 

insurance package in the amount of $22,200.00 and a pension package in the amount of 

$11,520.00. A new contract will be written to reflect these terms. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Being no further business, Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to 

adjourn the meeting. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 

 



                              
CITY OF CRAIG 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
April 9, 2019 

 

 
 
 

Attached is the Scheduled Payment Report for Month and 
Year to date totals ending: 

 
 
 

March 31, 2019 
 
 
 

                  Paid bills amount to       $  243,835.51 
  Payables                             145,365.09     

 
 

   TOTAL                        $  389,200.60 
 

 
 

Detail of the Monthly Expenditures is contained in the 
attached pages. 

 



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     1

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Report Criteria:

Summary report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Invoice Detail.GL Period = 0319

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

100

3B ENTERPRISES LLC 16854 WASHED ROCK 03/20/2019 214.20 .00 10-71-36300

          Total 100: 214.20 .00

235

ACZ LABORATORIES INC 49948 LAB ANALYSIS 03/04/2019 313.60 .00 60-66-35300

ACZ LABORATORIES INC 49997 LAB ANALYSIS 03/06/2019 204.00 .00 60-66-35300

          Total 235: 517.60 .00

716354

ADVANCED COPIER SOL 3430 MONTHLY BILLING 03/01/2019 31.65 .00 10-48-39700

          Total 716354: 31.65 .00

714939

ADVANCED INFOSYSTE 14701 UTILITY BILLING 03/06/2019 761.26 .00 70-67-32100

          Total 714939: 761.26 .00

380

AIRGAS USA LLC 9086200160 WIRE 03/05/2019 131.22 .00 10-71-22900

AIRGAS USA LLC 9086246535 WHL CUT OFF 03/06/2019 16.51 .00 10-71-22900

AIRGAS USA LLC 9086401881 COAT 03/11/2019 87.33 .00 50-65-22900

AIRGAS USA LLC 9960300299 CYLINDER RENTAL 02/28/2019 52.86 52.86 03/15/2019 50-65-39600

          Total 380: 287.92 52.86

1200

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2199209 SHIRT SERVICE 03/04/2019 79.35 .00 60-66-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2199216 FLOOR MATS 03/04/2019 95.74 .00 10-50-35800

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2199228 SHIRT SERVICE 03/04/2019 27.47 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2199229 SHIRT SERVICE 03/04/2019 195.90 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2199230 SHIRT SERVICE 03/04/2019 61.14 .00 70-67-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2202153 SHIRT SERVICE 03/11/2019 27.47 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2202154 SHIRT SERVICE 03/11/2019 204.29 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2202155 SHIRT SERVICE 03/11/2019 61.14 .00 70-67-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2205162 SHIRT SERVICE 03/18/2019 79.35 .00 60-66-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2205169 FLOOR MATS 03/18/2019 99.21 .00 10-50-35800

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2205181 SHIRT SERVICE 03/18/2019 27.47 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2205182 SHIRT SERVICE 03/18/2019 195.90 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2205183 SHIRT SERVICE 03/18/2019 61.14 .00 70-67-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2208074 SHIRT SERVICE 03/25/2019 79.35 .00 60-66-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2208091 SHIRT SERVICE 03/25/2019 27.47 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2208092 SHIRT SERVICE 03/25/2019 204.29 .00 10-64-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGRA2208093 SHIRT SERVICE 03/25/2019 61.14 .00 70-67-22500

AMERICAN LINEN LGREA2202136 SHIRT SERVICE 03/11/2019 79.35 .00 60-66-22500

          Total 1200: 1,667.17 .00



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     2

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

701629

ANSON EXCAVATING & P 8155 SOUTH POND CLEAN 03/05/2019 9,981.25 9,981.25 03/08/2019 50-65-35800

          Total 701629: 9,981.25 9,981.25

717899

ANTHEM SPORTS LLC 242050 EQUIPMENT 03/07/2019 353.94 .00 10-71-36303

          Total 717899: 353.94 .00

1270

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015677853 HOSE ASSEMBLY 03/04/2019 53.88 .00 10-72-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015677884 HOSE ASSEMBLY 03/04/2019 63.59 .00 10-64-36100

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015688740 SEALMASTER 03/05/2019 208.40 .00 10-72-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015699345 BEARINGS 03/06/2019 223.97 .00 50-65-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015699487 HOSE 03/06/2019 327.54 .00 10-64-36100

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015711275 PARKER HANNIFIN 03/07/2019 283.73 .00 10-72-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015777710 GATES 03/15/2019 11.32 .00 10-72-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015871874 PARTS 03/27/2019 188.64 .00 10-72-36200

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TE 7015884159 PARTS 03/28/2019 1.68 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 1270: 1,362.75 .00

1920

ATMOS ENERGY 04E089815FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 146.73 146.73 03/29/2019 50-65-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 10M785834FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 81.00 81.00 03/29/2019 60-66-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 1123787FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/14/2019 30.13 30.13 03/29/2019 10-72-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 129830FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 3,971.50 3,971.50 03/29/2019 50-65-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 12T959710FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/08/2019 875.44 875.44 03/29/2019 10-75-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 12T959717FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 497.07 497.07 03/29/2019 60-66-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 13W936387FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 268.45 268.45 03/15/2019 10-64-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 14Y791190FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 478.80 478.80 03/15/2019 70-67-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 14Y815036FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 230.17 230.17 03/15/2019 10-71-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 15D067978FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 531.38 531.38 03/15/2019 10-71-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 6590990FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 511.36 511.36 03/15/2019 10-64-34500

ATMOS ENERGY 9732464FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 457.03 457.03 03/29/2019 50-65-34500

ATMOS ENERGY G0017922FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/11/2019 377.63 377.63 03/29/2019 10-72-34500

ATMOS ENERGY R084516FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 1,103.49 1,103.49 03/15/2019 10-50-34500

ATMOS ENERGY T671245FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 355.34 355.34 03/15/2019 50-65-34500

ATMOS ENERGY W816385FEB19 MONTHLY SVC 03/05/2019 216.44 216.44 03/15/2019 10-64-34500

          Total 1920: 10,131.96 10,131.96

3643

BEAR CREEK ANIMAL HO 031519 A MESSERLY FOR J EAR 03/15/2019 100.00 100.00 03/22/2019 10-35-00000

BEAR CREEK ANIMAL HO 03152019 R LOFTON AN-2015-0143 03/15/2019 35.00 35.00 03/22/2019 10-35-00000

BEAR CREEK ANIMAL HO 032019 A MESSERLY FOR J EAR 03/20/2019 100.00 100.00 03/22/2019 10-35-00000

BEAR CREEK ANIMAL HO 94979 BOARD/DISPOSAL 03/01/2019 2,940.00 2,940.00 03/08/2019 10-51-57100

          Total 3643: 3,175.00 3,175.00

717721

BOECK, CHARLIE JO 02192019 MILEAGE 02/19/2019 536.32 536.32 03/22/2019 10-71-23100

          Total 717721: 536.32 536.32

4040

BOYKO SUPPLY 153733 CLEANING SUPPLIES 02/18/2019 196.49 196.49 03/15/2019 10-50-22300



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     3

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

BOYKO SUPPLY 154681 CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/06/2019 244.46 .00 10-50-22300

BOYKO SUPPLY 154974 CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/12/2019 67.95 .00 10-50-36200

BOYKO SUPPLY 155056 CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/13/2019 22.29- .00 10-50-22300

BOYKO SUPPLY 155632 PAPER SUPPLIES 03/29/2019 121.86 .00 10-71-22900

          Total 4040: 608.47 196.49

717828

BRIXIUS, PETER 03312019 PER CONTRACT -  MOVI 03/31/2019 2,964.57 2,964.57 04/05/2019 10-44-37100

          Total 717828: 2,964.57 2,964.57

717905

BURKE, BRENDA 03192019 PROGRAM REFUND 03/19/2019 65.00 65.00 03/22/2019 10-34-74900

          Total 717905: 65.00 65.00

717902

BURNS, KATY 03052019 PER DIEM 03/05/2019 433.80 433.80 03/15/2019 10-48-38100

          Total 717902: 433.80 433.80

717716

BUSINGER, NATHAN 02192019 PER DIEM 02/19/2019 65.00 65.00 03/15/2019 10-51-38100

          Total 717716: 65.00 65.00

5200

CASELLE INC 93795 SUPPORT 03/01/2019 1,880.00 1,880.00 03/08/2019 10-48-39700

          Total 5200: 1,880.00 1,880.00

5280

CDW GOVERNMENT, INC RKM8953 APC BACKUPS 03/08/2019 100.39 .00 60-66-36426

          Total 5280: 100.39 .00

717730

CEM SALES & SERVICE 148627 POOL PARTS 03/13/2019 582.84 .00 10-72-22900

CEM SALES & SERVICE 148641 POOL PARTS 03/18/2019 586.76 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 717730: 1,169.60 .00

5565

CENTURYLINK 1464955634 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/23/2019 28.35 28.35 04/05/2019 60-66-34700

CENTURYLINK 1744MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 39.74 39.74 03/29/2019 10-50-34700

CENTURYLINK 2964MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 74.93 74.93 03/29/2019 50-65-34700

CENTURYLINK 3015MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 157.63 157.63 03/29/2019 10-72-34700

CENTURYLINK 4463MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 205.80 205.80 03/29/2019 10-64-34700

CENTURYLINK 5111MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 169.94 169.94 03/29/2019 60-66-34700

CENTURYLINK 6026MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 129.96 129.96 03/29/2019 10-75-34700

CENTURYLINK 6340MAR19 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/13/2019 239.62 239.62 03/29/2019 50-65-34700

          Total 5565: 1,045.97 1,045.97

5770

CHAOS INK 11461 LOGO WORK 01/11/2019 300.00 300.00 03/22/2019 10-44-77000



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     4

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 5770: 300.00 300.00

716920

CHARTER COMMUNICATI 99225031619 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/16/2019 179.79 179.79 03/29/2019 21-87-34700

          Total 716920: 179.79 179.79

6012

CIRSA 190695 RUPTURES/BACKUPS 03/29/2019 49,343.33 49,343.33 03/29/2019 60-66-51300

          Total 6012: 49,343.33 49,343.33

6013

CIRSA WC W19173 WC CLAIMS 03/18/2019 664.54 664.54 03/22/2019 10-47-81400

CIRSA WC W19203 WC COVERAGE 2019 03/29/2019 44,561.75 44,561.75 03/29/2019 10-47-81400

          Total 6013: 45,226.29 45,226.29

6023

CITY OF CRAIG 02282019 FEBRUARY EXPENSE RE 02/28/2019 8,981.49 8,981.49 03/15/2019 10-51-35900

CITY OF CRAIG 03282019 MARCH EXPENSE REIMB 03/28/2019 8,991.30 8,991.30 03/29/2019 10-45-33800

          Total 6023: 17,972.79 17,972.79

704044

CNC TECHNICAL SERVIC P2663 BATTERIES 03/01/2019 496.59 496.59 03/15/2019 10-64-36700

          Total 704044: 496.59 496.59

717898

COCHRAN, MICHAEL 03132019 FIREARM PURCHASE 03/13/2019 539.74 539.74 03/15/2019 10-1154

          Total 717898: 539.74 539.74

704427

COLO DEPT OF AGRICUL 03142019 RENEWAL J ST.LOUIS 03/14/2019 100.00 100.00 03/15/2019 60-66-38100

          Total 704427: 100.00 100.00

704745

COLO DEPT OF PUBLIC  03312019 ACCOUNT 03-14 ISDS FE 03/31/2019 20.00 20.00 04/05/2019 10-32-12301

          Total 704745: 20.00 20.00

6624

COLORADO MOTOR VEH 03312019 1ST QUARTER OJW/DEF 03/31/2019 15.00 15.00 04/05/2019 10-35-00000

          Total 6624: 15.00 15.00

62420

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  335061-03012019 SPRING 2019 PLAY BY PL 03/07/2019 4,354.90 .00 10-73-32100

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  367138-03012019 FLEX 03/07/2019 894.00 .00 10-44-33700

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  384698-02222019 CLASSIFIED LEGAL 03/14/2019 45.46 .00 10-64-33100

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  386978-02262019 CLASSIFIED 03/28/2019 399.00 .00 10-72-33700

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  388981-03012019 CLASSIFIED LEGAL 03/14/2019 45.18 .00 10-41-33200

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  389019-03012019 CLASSIFIED LEGAL 03/14/2019 33.57 .00 10-45-33100

COLORADO MOUNTAIN  390881-03022019 CLASSIFIED 03/21/2019 373.75 .00 60-66-33700



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     5

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 62420: 6,145.86 .00

6632

COLORADO PARKS & RE 200010616 2019 ATTENDEE TICKET 03/12/2019 90.00 90.00 03/15/2019 10-71-38100

          Total 6632: 90.00 90.00

6643

COLORADO WEST, INC 50004 WATER 03/04/2019 15.00 .00 10-48-22900

COLORADO WEST, INC 50266 WATER 03/11/2019 7.50 .00 10-48-22900

COLORADO WEST, INC 50555 WATER 03/18/2019 7.50 .00 10-48-22900

COLORADO WEST, INC 50915 WATER 03/25/2019 7.50 .00 10-48-22900

          Total 6643: 37.50 .00

6650

CONSOLIDATED ELECTR 1534-532441 400W HID 03/06/2019 63.63 .00 50-65-36400

CONSOLIDATED ELECTR 1534-532833 24W POST TOP 03/19/2019 118.30 .00 10-71-36400

CONSOLIDATED ELECTR 1534-532910 WIRE CUTTER 03/21/2019 37.57 .00 10-71-23400

CONSOLIDATED ELECTR 1534-533033 PARTS 03/28/2019 232.16 .00 50-65-36220

          Total 6650: 451.66 .00

6658

COOK CHEVROLET INC 133602 LAMP 03/20/2019 108.00 .00 10-71-36100

          Total 6658: 108.00 .00

6659

COOK FORD INC 107606 TUBE ASSEMBLY 03/15/2019 50.29 .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107624 CREDIT 03/19/2019 50.29- .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107625 TUBE ASSEMBLY 03/19/2019 41.62 .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107634 VEHICLE PARTS 03/20/2019 552.41 .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107641 ANTI-FREEZE 03/21/2019 56.56 .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107656 BRAKE PADS 03/26/2019 239.93 .00 10-64-36100

COOK FORD INC 107679 WIPER BLADES 03/29/2019 109.10 .00 10-64-23200

          Total 6659: 999.62 .00

715806

CRAIG POWERSPORTS 7218 2018 CAN AM 03/20/2019 8,378.44 8,378.44 03/29/2019 10-71-93430

          Total 715806: 8,378.44 8,378.44

6945

CRAIG STEEL 23735 FLAT BAR 03/29/2019 64.58 .00 10-64-36900

          Total 6945: 64.58 .00

717152

CRAIG SUPER CAR WAS 2025FEB19 CAR WASH 03/04/2019 84.75 84.75 03/22/2019 10-51-36100

          Total 717152: 84.75 84.75

701519

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2059411 VFD PUMP CONTROLS 03/25/2019 369.56 .00 60-66-36425

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2060341 PROFIBUS COMPONENT 03/13/2019 1,705.20 .00 60-66-36425



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     6

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2060697 PARTS 03/13/2019 796.88 .00 60-66-36426

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2062064 PARTS 03/13/2019 560.74 .00 60-66-36425

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2062133 MEMORY CARD 03/13/2019 4,750.20 .00 50-65-36220

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2063819 WLAN PARTS 03/25/2019 1,562.95 .00 60-66-36425

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2064065 PARTS 03/22/2019 144.18 .00 60-66-36425

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2064893 CREDIT 03/07/2019 2,425.45- .00 60-66-36200

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2065329 PARTS 03/21/2019 144.34 .00 60-66-36426

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2065329-01 PARTS 03/25/2019 783.00 .00 60-66-36426

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2065329-02 PARTS 03/25/2019 1,078.02 .00 60-66-36426

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2065329-03 PARTS 03/25/2019 1,922.74 .00 60-66-36426

CRUM ELECTRIC SUPPL 2065329-04 PARTS 03/26/2019 254.25 .00 60-66-36426

          Total 701519: 11,646.61 .00

6954

CUMMINS ROCKY MOUN 100-54800 INSITE LITE REGISTRATI 03/06/2019 720.00 .00 10-64-39700

          Total 6954: 720.00 .00

26410

DANA KEPNER COMPAN 1491423 METERS 03/07/2019 2,687.46 .00 50-65-36223

DANA KEPNER COMPAN 1491847 REPAIR CLAMPS 03/18/2019 600.86 .00 50-65-36221

          Total 26410: 3,288.32 .00

717920

DBC IRRIGATION SUPPL S3278122.001 PARTS 03/25/2019 3,746.92 .00 10-71-36303

          Total 717920: 3,746.92 .00

705383

DEX MEDIA EAST 120356004MAR19 ADVERTISING 03/03/2019 190.15 190.15 03/15/2019 70-67-33700

          Total 705383: 190.15 190.15

717906

DWS 03112019 REFUND FOR CONSTRU 03/11/2019 425.00 425.00 04/02/2019 70-34-49710

          Total 717906: 425.00 425.00

715483

EC LINK 12731 ANNUAL LICENSE E-GOV 01/01/2019 1,389.00 1,389.00 04/05/2019 10-73-35800

          Total 715483: 1,389.00 1,389.00

717327

ECKHOFF, MARLIN 030819 PER DIEM 03/08/2019 124.00 124.00 03/08/2019 10-49-38100

          Total 717327: 124.00 124.00

704193

EDWARDS, MICHAEL 02192019 PER DIEM 02/19/2019 65.00 65.00 03/15/2019 10-51-38100

          Total 704193: 65.00 65.00

717151

ELEVATED TECHNOLOGI 19030201 1ST QUARTER CENTER  03/06/2019 250.00 250.00 03/15/2019 10-75-35800



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     7

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 717151: 250.00 250.00

717206

ELKHEAD SUPPLY INC 24743 ACETYLENE 03/15/2019 101.40 101.40 03/22/2019 70-67-36800

          Total 717206: 101.40 101.40

717915

ERICKSON, SUSAN 03292019 PROGRAM REFUND 03/29/2019 155.00 155.00 04/05/2019 10-34-95400

          Total 717915: 155.00 155.00

701663

FAGAN, LEE 03292019 PER DIEM 03/29/2019 60.00 60.00 03/29/2019 10-71-38100

          Total 701663: 60.00 60.00

13050

FASTENAL COMPANY COSTE48870 PARTS 03/04/2019 216.14 .00 10-71-36300

FASTENAL COMPANY COSTE49021 PARTS 03/22/2019 3.08 .00 50-65-36200

          Total 13050: 219.22 .00

13900

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 5534875 LAB SUPPLIES 03/05/2019 487.10 .00 60-66-22119

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 5534891 LAB SUPPLIES 03/05/2019 243.63 .00 60-66-22119

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 5534892 LAB SUPPLIES 03/05/2019 353.96 .00 60-66-22119

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 5534908 LAB SUPPLIES 03/05/2019 58.74 .00 60-66-22119

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 5955361 LAB SUPPLIES 03/06/2019 264.58 .00 60-66-22119

FISHER SCIENTIFIC COM 8573940 MEASURING JUG 03/19/2019 43.45 .00 60-66-22119

          Total 13900: 1,451.46 .00

714931

FORBES CERTIFIED WEL 53163 WELDING 03/07/2019 187.50 .00 10-64-35800

          Total 714931: 187.50 .00

716213

FORCE AMERICA DISTRI 0013508 CREDIT 03/01/2019 3,701.18- .00 10-64-36100

FORCE AMERICA DISTRI 1319839 VALVE 02/27/2019 3,731.49 .00 10-64-36100

FORCE AMERICA DISTRI 1322082 VALVE 03/06/2019 2,783.84 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 716213: 2,814.15 .00

717908

GASES 101 LLC 2019166 GAS DETECTION TRAINI 03/13/2019 450.00 .00 60-66-38100

          Total 717908: 450.00 .00

717643

GONZALEZ, GUADALUPE 03062019 TR-2017-0070 D MARTIN 03/06/2019 100.00 100.00 03/08/2019 10-35-00000

GONZALEZ, GUADALUPE 03312019 RESTITUTION-TR-2017-0 03/31/2019 100.00 100.00 04/05/2019 10-35-00000

          Total 717643: 200.00 200.00



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     8

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

16400

GRAINGER 9101876135 HEATER 02/28/2019 1,415.00 .00 60-66-36400

GRAINGER 9104882163 HOURMETER 03/04/2019 33.62 .00 60-66-36426

GRAINGER 9107752942 PILOT ASSEMBLY 03/07/2019 87.08 .00 50-65-36223

GRAINGER 9114796171 PARTS 03/13/2019 1,542.74 .00 60-66-36426

GRAINGER 9115896418 CIRCUIT BREAKER 03/15/2019 1,261.56 .00 60-66-36426

GRAINGER 9126820803 ABSORBENT SUPPLIES 03/25/2019 234.29 .00 50-65-22900

GRAINGER 9127861285 SPILLBLOCKER BARRIE 03/26/2019 1,092.00 .00 50-65-36400

          Total 16400: 5,666.29 .00

16490

GRAND JUNCTION PETE 162387 DIPSTICK 03/22/2019 125.04 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 16490: 125.04 .00

16500

GRAND JUNCTION PIPE 0965393 PARTS 03/20/2019 1,034.86 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 16500: 1,034.86 .00

717918

GREATAMERICA FINANCI 24433930 COPIER PAYMENT 03/13/2019 254.34 254.34 04/05/2019 10-71-32100

          Total 717918: 254.34 254.34

717909

GREENHOW, CRYSTAL 03222019 PROGRAM REFUND 03/22/2019 65.00 65.00 03/29/2019 10-34-74900

          Total 717909: 65.00 65.00

18204

HACH CHEMICAL COMPA 11369614 CHEMICALS 03/07/2019 616.55 .00 60-66-22119

HACH CHEMICAL COMPA 11371609 SUPPLIES 03/08/2019 226.59 .00 60-66-22119

          Total 18204: 843.14 .00

20600

HYDROTECH SYSTEMS,  VSW081 SOLENOIDS 03/01/2019 480.68 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 20600: 480.68 .00

705095

IDENTITY GRAPHICS LLC 11403 WTW DECALS 02/20/2019 478.50 478.50 03/29/2019 10-71-33700

IDENTITY GRAPHICS LLC 11436 BANNER 03/07/2019 144.00 144.00 03/15/2019 10-72-33700

IDENTITY GRAPHICS LLC 11483 ALICE PLEASANT PARK  03/21/2019 510.00 510.00 03/29/2019 10-71-36332

          Total 705095: 1,132.50 1,132.50

20950

INDUSTRIAL HEALTH SE 117606 DOT 02/28/2019 318.80 318.80 03/15/2019 10-71-35800

INDUSTRIAL HEALTH SE 117607 ANNUAL PROGRAM FEE 02/28/2019 179.00 179.00 03/15/2019 10-51-35800

          Total 20950: 497.80 497.80

717860

INLAND TRUCK PARTS C 254227 SHOE KIT 03/04/2019 71.90 .00 10-64-36100

INLAND TRUCK PARTS C 257209 SHOE KIT 03/06/2019 255.26 255.26 03/15/2019 10-64-36100



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     9

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

INLAND TRUCK PARTS C 266577 SHOE KIT 03/19/2019 245.80 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 717860: 572.96 255.26

22200

INTERSTATE BATTERIES 21320209 BATTERIES 03/04/2019 581.85 .00 10-64-36100

INTERSTATE BATTERIES 990993555 MT-27 03/25/2019 111.95 .00 10-64-23200

          Total 22200: 693.80 .00

23408

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431054 CALENDAR 03/04/2019 10.99 .00 10-71-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431059 FLASH DRIVE 03/04/2019 44.98 .00 10-43-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431082 NAME PLATE 03/04/2019 12.00 .00 10-41-37900

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431127 NOTEBOOKS 03/06/2019 77.05 .00 10-51-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431199 PAPER CLIPS 03/08/2019 28.25 .00 70-67-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431292 BINDER 03/13/2019 5.40 .00 10-73-22405

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431344 FOLDERS 03/15/2019 67.21 .00 10-48-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431345 FOLDERS 03/15/2019 13.28 .00 10-49-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431346 INK 03/15/2019 99.99 .00 10-45-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431357 JOURNAL 03/15/2019 19.99 .00 50-65-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431411 PENS 03/19/2019 10.78 .00 10-45-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431413 FOLDERS 03/19/2019 24.15 .00 10-48-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431416 PENS 03/19/2019 7.16 .00 50-65-36433

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431471 ENVELOPES 03/21/2019 145.00 .00 50-65-32100

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431520 MAILER 03/22/2019 332.50 .00 10-45-33800

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431566 LABELS 03/26/2019 30.74 .00 10-51-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431603 TAPE 03/27/2019 57.29 .00 10-45-33800

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431606 TAPE 03/27/2019 10.47 .00 10-45-33800

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431610 ASTROBRIGHTS 03/27/2019 15.99 .00 10-45-33800

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431616 FLASH DRIVE 03/27/2019 59.98 .00 10-44-21400

JACKSON'S OFFICE SUP 10431650 BUSINESS CARDS 03/28/2019 65.00 .00 10-44-21100

          Total 23408: 1,138.20 .00

715918

JENISON CUSTOM BUILD 1895 DOOR REPAIRS 03/13/2019 186.92 186.92 03/15/2019 10-50-36400

          Total 715918: 186.92 186.92

6015

KROGER CO 006717 DONUTS 03/04/2019 31.94 .00 10-73-22409

KROGER CO 246952 FOOD 03/13/2019 16.48 .00 10-45-37900

KROGER CO 277033 BATTERIES 03/14/2019 19.98 .00 10-48-22900

          Total 6015: 68.40 .00

24811

L.L. JOHNSON DISTRIBU 1797587-00 AIR FILTER ELEMENT 03/21/2019 30.86 .00 10-71-36303

          Total 24811: 30.86 .00

30078

LAUNDRY, THE 59964 FLOOR MATS 03/01/2019 48.00 .00 10-75-35800

LAUNDRY, THE 60060 FLOOR MATS 03/16/2019 48.00 .00 10-75-35800

LAUNDRY, THE 60155 FLOOR MATS 03/31/2019 48.00 .00 10-75-35800



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     10

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 30078: 144.00 .00

717310

LOCKSMITH OF CRAIG 03201902 KEYS 03/20/2019 40.00 40.00 03/29/2019 10-64-36100

          Total 717310: 40.00 40.00

716423

MARTINEZ, MARTHA 03142019 PROGRAM REFUND 03/14/2019 100.00 100.00 03/15/2019 10-34-95400

          Total 716423: 100.00 100.00

716917

MASTER PETROLEUM IN 2070311 FUEL 03/01/2019 14,505.40 .00 10-64-23100

MASTER PETROLEUM IN M190283 OIL 03/08/2019 3,949.04 .00 10-64-23100

MASTER PETROLEUM IN M191303 PINNACLE 460 PAIL 03/28/2019 59.38 .00 60-66-23100

          Total 716917: 18,513.82 .00

31265

MASTERWORKS MECHA 4757M Q IGNITOR FLAME ROD  03/14/2019 102.14 102.14 03/22/2019 50-65-36223

MASTERWORKS MECHA 65089H HVAC REPAIR 03/04/2019 389.38 389.38 03/15/2019 60-66-36400

MASTERWORKS MECHA 65761H BOILER ISSUES 03/10/2019 648.47 648.47 03/29/2019 10-71-36400

MASTERWORKS MECHA 65995H WATER HEATER ISSUES 03/28/2019 767.07 767.07 04/05/2019 10-71-36400

          Total 31265: 1,907.06 1,907.06

717123

MCCANDLESS TRUCK C P105041797:01 SUN VISOR CLIP 03/01/2019 34.75 .00 10-64-36100

MCCANDLESS TRUCK C P105042110:01 BELT FAN 03/14/2019 57.69 .00 10-64-36100

MCCANDLESS TRUCK C P105042151:01 LIGHT DOOR 03/14/2019 234.16 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 717123: 326.60 .00

716362

MCKEY CHIROPRACTIC  03052019 UA K JOHNSON 03/05/2019 20.00 .00 10-71-35800

MCKEY CHIROPRACTIC  031319 UA J KENNELL 03/13/2019 20.00 .00 10-51-35100

MCKEY CHIROPRACTIC  03142019 UA T MENDOZA 03/14/2019 55.00 .00 10-51-35100

          Total 716362: 95.00 .00

31615

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 14632C10628 IMMUNIZATIONS M COC 02/01/2019 350.00 350.00 03/15/2019 10-51-35100

          Total 31615: 350.00 350.00

717904

MICRO MOTION INC 40526036 ROSEMOUNT 03/05/2019 5,299.31 5,299.31 03/15/2019 60-66-36425

          Total 717904: 5,299.31 5,299.31

717725

MITEL CLOUD SERVICES 30996184 MONTHLY SERVICE 03/05/2019 843.07 843.07 03/15/2019 10-71-34700

          Total 717725: 843.07 843.07



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     11

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

31201

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271477 GLOVES 02/26/2019 8.99 .00 60-66-22900

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271628 STRAIGHT SHAFT 03/01/2019 1,419.41 .00 10-71-21200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271629 SUPPLIES 03/01/2019 111.98 .00 10-71-23400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271630 PARTS 03/01/2019 29.57 .00 50-65-36220

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271637 FELT PAD 03/01/2019 4.29 .00 50-65-36220

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271641 PARTS 03/01/2019 25.98 .00 50-65-36220

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271722 EMERYCLOTH 03/04/2019 9.99 .00 50-65-23400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271725 PARTS 03/04/2019 49.72 .00 10-72-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271831 PARTS 03/06/2019 32.95 .00 10-75-36300

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271857 PARTS 03/06/2019 12.76 .00 50-65-36220

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271858 LIGHT BULBS 03/06/2019 9.98 .00 50-65-36400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271866 SHOVEL 03/06/2019 145.96 .00 10-71-36300

MJK SALES & FEED INC 271915 ZIPPER POUCH 03/07/2019 17.98 .00 10-71-36303

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272044 VALVE 03/11/2019 55.08 .00 10-72-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272064 PARTS 03/11/2019 21.98 .00 50-65-36221

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272117 PAINT SUPPLIES 03/12/2019 54.72 .00 50-65-36424

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272120 TRIMMER HEAD 03/12/2019 89.97 .00 10-71-36300

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272276 PAINT SUPPLIES 03/15/2019 5.98 .00 60-66-36400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272408 LIGHT BULBS 03/19/2019 5.99 .00 10-64-36100

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272463 STRUT 03/20/2019 19.99 .00 50-65-36400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272510 CLAMPS 03/21/2019 7.59 .00 10-71-36300

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272535 GLOVES 03/21/2019 19.99 .00 10-71-22900

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272592 PARTS 03/22/2019 27.54 .00 50-65-36220

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272611 FASTENERS 03/22/2019 6.38 .00 50-65-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272724 WATER SALES 03/25/2019 11.98 .00 50-65-36223

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272725 BACK FLOW TEST KIT 03/25/2019 22.01 .00 50-65-36221

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272751 LIGHT BULBS 03/26/2019 5.99 .00 10-71-36400

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272794 PVC 03/26/2019 13.98 .00 50-65-36300

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272833 ADAPTERS 03/27/2019 29.64 .00 10-72-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272836 COMMAND STRIPS 03/27/2019 5.99 .00 10-51-22900

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272849 PARTS 03/27/2019 31.76 .00 10-72-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272892 FASTENERS 03/28/2019 25.65 .00 10-71-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272912 TUBE POLY 03/28/2019 8.10 .00 10-72-36200

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272920 PAINT SUPPLIES 03/28/2019 34.74 .00 50-65-36433

MJK SALES & FEED INC 272926 PARTS 03/28/2019 19.99 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 31201: 2,404.60 .00

32612

MOFFAT COUNTY ACCO 01-003355 RENT 03/01/2019 2,950.00 .00 10-51-53100

MOFFAT COUNTY ACCO 04-036371 LANDFILL CHARGES 03/30/2019 31,407.85 .00 70-67-39500

MOFFAT COUNTY ACCO 16-009134 PHONE BILLING 03/01/2019 135.51 .00 10-51-34700

          Total 32612: 34,493.36 .00

32614

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 02012019 2019 LAMAR TRAILER 02/01/2019 9.37 .00 50-65-33300

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 150837 LIEN RELEASE 02/04/2019 26.00 .00 10-48-56100

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 150941 PLAT COPY 02/15/2019 10.00 .00 10-48-56100

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 150999 LIEN RELEASE 02/22/2019 13.00 .00 10-48-56100

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 151012 LIEN STATEMENT 02/25/2019 13.00 .00 10-48-56100

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 151013 LIEN RELEASE 02/25/2019 13.00 .00 10-48-56100

MOFFAT COUNTY CLERK 151014 LIEN RELEASE 02/25/2019 13.00 .00 10-48-56100

          Total 32614: 97.37 .00



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     12

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

32634

MOFFAT COUNTY TREAS 03182019 GAGON DEED 03/28/2019 358.84 358.84 03/29/2019 10-44-77000

          Total 32634: 358.84 358.84

717691

MOSER LLC 030419 REFUND CITY PERMIT F 03/04/2019 33.00 33.00 03/08/2019 10-32-12300

          Total 717691: 33.00 33.00

717910

MOURIQAND, TONY 032919 PER DIEM 03/29/2019 .00 .00 10-71-38100

          Total 717910: .00 .00

717917

MPD DIGITAL 71339041315 ANTENNA 07/31/2018 981.12 981.12 04/05/2019 60-66-36425

          Total 717917: 981.12 981.12

717483

MUNICIPAL CODE CORP 325837 SUPPLEMENT PAGES 03/28/2019 1,172.18 .00 10-45-33300

          Total 717483: 1,172.18 .00

32925

MUNICIPAL TREATMENT  182456 BRONCO BOARD 03/05/2019 1,090.83 .00 50-65-36200

MUNICIPAL TREATMENT  182461 DIAPHRAGM 03/07/2019 3,182.46 .00 50-65-36200

MUNICIPAL TREATMENT  182507 BELLOW SEAL 03/18/2019 367.51 .00 50-65-36200

MUNICIPAL TREATMENT  182530 O RINGS 03/21/2019 278.18 .00 50-65-36220

MUNICIPAL TREATMENT  182543 DIAPHRAGM 03/26/2019 1,286.25 .00 50-65-36200

          Total 32925: 6,205.23 .00

32980

MURDOCHS RANCH & H 150958 PARTS 02/20/2019 3.24 .00 10-71-36300

MURDOCHS RANCH & H 150992 TOOLS 03/01/2019 692.76 .00 10-71-23400

MURDOCHS RANCH & H 151092 SAFETY JACKET 03/26/2019 44.99 .00 60-66-22900

          Total 32980: 740.99 .00

705049

NATIONAL RIFLE ASSOCI 031519 FIREARM INSTRUCTOR  03/15/2019 645.00 645.00 03/15/2019 10-51-38100

NATIONAL RIFLE ASSOCI 03152019 FIREARM INSTRUCTOR  03/15/2019 645.00 645.00 03/15/2019 10-51-38100

          Total 705049: 1,290.00 1,290.00

36047

NEWARK element14 31362212 CIRCUIT BREAKER 03/07/2019 216.07 .00 60-66-36426

NEWARK element14 31368819 CIRCUIT BREAKER 03/11/2019 917.11 .00 60-66-36426

          Total 36047: 1,133.18 .00

36052

NORTHWEST AUTO GLA 10851 WINDSHIELD REPLACEM 03/07/2019 296.80 .00 60-66-36100

NORTHWEST AUTO GLA 10862 WINDSHIELD REPLACEM 03/11/2019 430.70 .00 10-64-36100



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     13

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 36052: 727.50 .00

717412

NORTHWEST COLORAD 03192019 M BRIGGS IMMUNIZATIO 03/19/2019 157.50 157.50 03/29/2019 60-66-35800

          Total 717412: 157.50 157.50

717488

NORTHWEST DIESEL SA 29660 INSPECTION 03/01/2019 1,455.85 1,455.85 03/15/2019 70-67-36100

          Total 717488: 1,455.85 1,455.85

715542

NORTHWEST TOOL REP 10987 SEWER NOZZLE 03/18/2019 76.82 .00 10-64-36200

          Total 715542: 76.82 .00

717921

NORWECO 218148 DECLORINATION TABLET 03/26/2019 506.93 .00 50-65-36221

          Total 717921: 506.93 .00

715217

NSI LAB SOLUTIONS, INC 364183 LAB ANALYSIS 03/25/2019 1,131.00 .00 60-66-35300

          Total 715217: 1,131.00 .00

36150

OJ WATSON COMPANY I 84197 CUTTING EDGE 03/14/2019 1,971.10 .00 10-64-36200

          Total 36150: 1,971.10 .00

36600

ORKIN EXTERMINATING  180390322 MONTHLY SVC 02/07/2019 115.48 .00 10-50-35800

ORKIN EXTERMINATING  18102969 MONTHLY SVC 03/07/2019 115.48 .00 10-50-35800

          Total 36600: 230.96 .00

715269

PETROLEUM EQUIPMEN 5595 COMPLIANCE INSPECTI 03/14/2019 712.50 .00 10-64-23100

          Total 715269: 712.50 .00

39835

PITNEY BOWES INC. 1011586723 SERVICE AGREEMENT 03/11/2019 366.48 366.48 03/15/2019 10-48-39700

PITNEY BOWES INC. 1011589832 METER 03/11/2019 180.00 180.00 03/15/2019 10-48-39700

          Total 39835: 546.48 546.48

716827

PLASTI-SIZE, LLC 1179 BLOCKS FOR TANKS 03/29/2019 144.00 .00 50-65-36220

          Total 716827: 144.00 .00

717712

POSTMASTER 022819 BOX #1327 RENEWAL-1 Y 02/28/2019 274.00 274.00 04/05/2019 21-87-31100



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     14

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 717712: 274.00 274.00

717888

POTESTIO BROTHERS E 82606P ATTACHMENTS 02/27/2019 888.01 888.01 03/15/2019 10-71-36200

          Total 717888: 888.01 888.01

40750

PROGRESSIVE BUSINES O5139336 RENEWAL 03/18/2019 330.00 330.00 03/22/2019 10-45-33300

          Total 40750: 330.00 330.00

717903

REI 9439692838 BIKE PACKS 03/06/2019 89.10 89.10 03/15/2019 10-73-22405

          Total 717903: 89.10 89.10

44625

RESPOND FIRST AID OF  044447 SUPPLIES 03/05/2019 42.85 .00 10-50-35800

          Total 44625: 42.85 .00

704100

REXEL USA, INC S123913599.003 SPEED GREY LEGEND P 02/28/2019 18.38 18.38 03/15/2019 60-66-36425

REXEL USA, INC S123960356.001 CABLE 03/06/2019 54.14 .00 50-65-36220

REXEL USA, INC S123960356.002 RETURN 03/13/2019 54.14- .00 50-65-36220

REXEL USA, INC S124108735.001 CABLE 03/11/2019 65.04 .00 50-65-36220

          Total 704100: 83.42 18.38

717709

ROCKY MOUNTAIN AUTO 47551 ENGINE LABOR 03/01/2019 42.50 .00 10-71-36200

          Total 717709: 42.50 .00

715935

ROCKY MOUNTAIN MAC 02-23024 FILTERS 03/12/2019 152.41 152.41 03/15/2019 10-71-36200

          Total 715935: 152.41 152.41

715438

ROMNEY LAW OFFICE 34778 PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 03/06/2019 2,088.00 2,088.00 03/08/2019 10-42-35800

ROMNEY LAW OFFICE 34813 PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 03/14/2019 2,052.00 2,052.00 03/18/2019 10-42-35800

ROMNEY LAW OFFICE 34816 PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 03/20/2019 2,664.00 2,664.00 03/22/2019 10-42-35800

ROMNEY LAW OFFICE 34817 PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 03/27/2019 2,988.00 2,988.00 03/29/2019 10-42-35800

          Total 715438: 9,792.00 9,792.00

716613

ROYAL T ELECTRIC LTD PO4867 INSTALLATION 02/19/2019 727.50 727.50 03/15/2019 60-66-36425

ROYAL T ELECTRIC LTD PO5300 INSTALLATION 03/01/2019 1,362.00 1,362.00 03/15/2019 50-65-36424

          Total 716613: 2,089.50 2,089.50

46803

SAFETY-KLEEN CORP. 79219167 SOLVENT SERVICE 03/11/2019 268.85 .00 10-64-23100



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     15

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 46803: 268.85 .00

46820

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141548 PARTS 03/01/2019 3.49 .00 50-65-36220

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141634 FASTENERS 03/04/2019 27.94 .00 10-72-36200

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141729 FASTENERS 03/05/2019 6.49 .00 10-71-36400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141750 FASTENERS 03/06/2019 6.29 .00 10-75-36300

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141782 SUPPLIES 03/06/2019 4.58 .00 10-75-36300

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 141921 SUPPLIES 03/08/2019 10.49 .00 10-72-22900

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142054 FASTENERS 03/11/2019 26.23 .00 10-71-23400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142122 KEYS 03/12/2019 2.79 .00 10-71-36400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142158 PARTS 03/12/2019 6.98 .00 50-65-36220

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142404 DOOR CLOSER 03/15/2019 80.99 .00 10-75-36300

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142787 SHELVING SUPPLIES 03/21/2019 24.26 .00 10-71-36400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 142820 SHELVING SUPPLIES 03/21/2019 14.09 .00 10-71-36400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143046 SHOPVAC 03/25/2019 99.99 .00 60-66-23400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143098 FASTENERS 03/26/2019 13.32 .00 10-72-36200

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143191 PARTS 03/27/2019 84.97 .00 60-66-36400

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143206 ADAPTER 03/27/2019 4.99 .00 10-72-36200

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143263 ADAPTER 03/28/2019 14.78 .00 10-72-36200

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143269 COPPER CLEANING TOO 03/28/2019 14.48 .00 10-72-36200

SAMUELSON TRUE VALU 143313 PARTS 03/28/2019 41.55 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 46820: 488.70 .00

717914

SANFORD, SHERI 03292019 PROGRAM REFUND 03/29/2019 155.00 155.00 04/05/2019 10-34-95400

          Total 717914: 155.00 155.00

716954

SCHMUESER GORDON  2013-520.008-14 US 40 SIDEWALK IMPRO 03/20/2019 5,443.03 5,443.03 03/29/2019 20-81-96100

SCHMUESER GORDON  2013-520.017-3 SMALL BARCLAY INSPEC 03/27/2019 2,169.00 2,169.00 04/05/2019 50-65-36222

          Total 716954: 7,612.03 7,612.03

715862

SEACREST GROUP 419104.B CHRONIC WET TESTING 03/08/2019 1,979.00 .00 60-66-35300

          Total 715862: 1,979.00 .00

47225

SEVERSON SUPPLY CO I 19186 TIE ROD 03/04/2019 181.37 .00 10-64-36100

SEVERSON SUPPLY CO I 19256 HARNESS 03/12/2019 223.96 .00 10-71-36200

          Total 47225: 405.33 .00

700907

SGS ACCUTEST INC 521-60107674 LEAD & COPPER TEST 03/21/2019 1,581.10 .00 50-65-35300

SGS ACCUTEST INC 521-60107846 LAB ANALYSIS 03/18/2019 470.66 .00 50-65-35300

SGS ACCUTEST INC 521-60107979 LAB ANALYSIS 03/22/2019 102.56 .00 50-65-35300

          Total 700907: 2,154.32 .00

47300

SHEPHERD & SONS INC 52963 REPAIR 03/14/2019 1,066.00 1,066.00 03/22/2019 60-66-36400



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     16

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 47300: 1,066.00 1,066.00

48115

SNAP-ON TOOLS CORP. 03071951185 ULTRA 03/07/2019 999.00 999.00 03/15/2019 10-64-39700

          Total 48115: 999.00 999.00

716119

ST. LOUIS, JAMES 03122019 PER DIEM 03/08/2019 10.00 10.00 03/08/2019 60-66-38100

          Total 716119: 10.00 10.00

48300

STANDARD INSURANCE  751510APR19 PREMIUM 03/18/2019 2,490.17 2,490.17 04/05/2019 70-67-14700

          Total 48300: 2,490.17 2,490.17

48500

STANDARD PLUMBING S JHR082 PARTS 03/01/2019 19.17 .00 50-65-36220

STANDARD PLUMBING S JKKV69 PARTS 03/26/2019 5.63 .00 50-65-36300

STANDARD PLUMBING S JKM426 ADAPTER 03/27/2019 13.47 .00 10-72-36200

          Total 48500: 38.27 .00

717256

SWANK MOTION PICTUR 1577337.2 MOVIE 12/11/2018 435.00 435.00 04/05/2019 10-73-22405

          Total 717256: 435.00 435.00

50115

T & H PARTS INC 558683 CAP SCREW 03/04/2019 .92 .00 10-71-36100

T & H PARTS INC 558788 LICENSE LAMP 03/04/2019 4.14 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 558851 LICENSE KIT 03/05/2019 2.28 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 558863 V BELT 03/05/2019 26.72 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 558900 DOOR HANDLE 03/05/2019 98.99 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 559168 WIPER BLADES 03/06/2019 8.82 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 559272 PARTS 03/07/2019 3.34 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 559599 PARTS 03/08/2019 36.73 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 559797 FILTERS 03/11/2019 32.30 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 559903 PARTS 03/11/2019 5.22 .00 50-65-36221

T & H PARTS INC 560035 BRAKE PADS 03/12/2019 20.16 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 560205 SPARK PLUGS 03/13/2019 50.92 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 560234 WIPER BLADES 03/13/2019 54.47 .00 50-65-23200

T & H PARTS INC 560253 PARTS 03/13/2019 26.98 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 560683 VINYL TUBING 03/15/2019 2.28 .00 50-65-36221

T & H PARTS INC 560688 PAINT 03/15/2019 41.29 .00 60-66-36200

T & H PARTS INC 560948 FILTERS 03/18/2019 237.61 .00 10-64-23200

T & H PARTS INC 561010 LICENSE KIT 03/18/2019 6.54 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 561346 PARTS 03/20/2019 15.98 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 561366 GAS TANK 03/20/2019 24.83 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 561367 USB ADAPTER 03/20/2019 19.99 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 561532 ABRASIVE SHEETS 03/21/2019 60.34 .00 10-64-23400

T & H PARTS INC 561544 SPARK PLUGS 03/21/2019 9.00 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 561546 SPARK PLUGS 03/21/2019 4.10 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 561571 ABRASIVE SHEETS 03/21/2019 5.92 .00 10-64-23200

T & H PARTS INC 561628 SERVICE 03/21/2019 10.45 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562048 TERMINALS 03/25/2019 20.36 .00 10-71-36200



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     17

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

T & H PARTS INC 562084 ANTIFREEZE 03/25/2019 16.14 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 562087 FILTERS 03/25/2019 51.56 .00 10-64-23200

T & H PARTS INC 562089 LIGHTS 03/25/2019 8.20 .00 10-64-23200

T & H PARTS INC 562158 FITTINGS 03/25/2019 65.31 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562237 FILTERS 03/26/2019 36.38 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562246 CLAMPS 03/26/2019 5.20 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562262 GEAR REDUCER VENT 03/26/2019 31.75 .00 60-66-36200

T & H PARTS INC 562311 GLOVES 03/26/2019 17.50 .00 10-71-22900

T & H PARTS INC 562312 PARTS 03/26/2019 55.68 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562358 SPRAYER 03/26/2019 59.09 .00 10-64-23400

T & H PARTS INC 562476 OIL 03/27/2019 46.79 .00 10-72-36200

T & H PARTS INC 562495 SUPPLIES 03/27/2019 15.98 .00 10-71-36200

T & H PARTS INC 562504 LIGHTS 03/27/2019 40.61 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562607 FILTERS 03/27/2019 45.19 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562693 RESPIRATOR 03/28/2019 25.98 .00 10-71-36300

T & H PARTS INC 562807 PARTS 03/28/2019 96.23 .00 10-64-36100

T & H PARTS INC 562859 CREDIT 03/28/2019 35.97- .00 10-64-36100

          Total 50115: 1,412.30 .00

717355

TEST GAUGE & BACKFL 6-1010 CALIBRATION/RE-CERTIF 03/28/2019 113.10 .00 50-65-36221

          Total 717355: 113.10 .00

50118

THATCHER COMPANY IN 1464520 POOL CHEMICALS 03/22/2019 2,071.63 .00 10-72-22100

THATCHER COMPANY IN 1465164 SODA ASH 03/28/2019 3,556.00 .00 50-65-22100

THATCHER COMPANY IN 1465165 POOL CHEMICALS 03/28/2019 154.00 .00 10-72-22100

          Total 50118: 5,781.63 .00

717911

TINTOMETER INC 87080569 FLUIDICS MANAGER 03/26/2019 4,890.20 .00 50-65-36220

TINTOMETER INC 87080570 ROTOMETER KITS 03/26/2019 1,400.00 .00 50-65-36220

          Total 717911: 6,290.20 .00

706410

TOWN OF HAYDEN 2025FEB19 UTILITIES 02/28/2019 68.46 68.46 03/08/2019 21-87-34200

TOWN OF HAYDEN 2025MAR19 UTILITIES 03/27/2019 68.86 68.86 04/05/2019 21-87-34200

          Total 706410: 137.32 137.32

716958

TRANS-UNION RISK & AL 407761MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/01/2019 50.00 .00 10-51-33300

          Total 716958: 50.00 .00

50925

TRANSWEST TRUCKS 4P48360 TENSIONERS 03/04/2019 89.74 .00 10-64-36100

TRANSWEST TRUCKS 4P48443 BELTS 03/04/2019 185.71 .00 10-64-36100

TRANSWEST TRUCKS 4P49725 COVER 03/28/2019 206.91 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 50925: 482.36 .00

717344

TRI STATE OIL RECLAIME 0216526 USED OIL 03/15/2019 180.00 .00 70-67-38200



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     18

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 717344: 180.00 .00

716472

TWO DOG MACHINING L 158 FABRICATING 03/11/2019 4,606.09 4,606.09 03/15/2019 60-66-36200

          Total 716472: 4,606.09 4,606.09

717732

UNCC 219030256 RTL TRANSMISSIONS 03/31/2019 52.54 .00 50-65-35800

          Total 717732: 52.54 .00

53830

UNION TELEPHONE COM 70089904MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/03/2019 1,147.49 .00 10-51-34700

UNION TELEPHONE COM 710087276MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/17/2019 107.25 .00 10-49-34700

          Total 53830: 1,254.74 .00

53806

UNITED STATES POSTAL  03222019 POSTAGE 03/22/2019 1,000.00 1,000.00 03/29/2019 70-67-31100

          Total 53806: 1,000.00 1,000.00

717907

UNITED STATES TREASU CP161 PENALTY 03/11/2019 325.06 325.06 03/22/2019 10-48-56100

          Total 717907: 325.06 325.06

716055

UPS W28068099 SHIPPING 03/02/2019 191.68 191.68 03/15/2019 50-65-35300

UPS W28068109 SHIPPING 03/09/2019 87.47 87.47 03/22/2019 60-66-22119

UPS W28068119 SHIPPING 03/16/2019 12.01 12.01 03/22/2019 50-65-36220

          Total 716055: 291.16 291.16

717111

US MULE INC 14837-33783 WIPER BLADES 03/18/2019 117.50 .00 10-64-36100

US MULE INC 59594 SPARK PLUG 03/06/2019 65.52 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 717111: 183.02 .00

714946

US POSTMASTER 152361 POSTAGE 03/05/2019 1,352.96 1,352.96 03/15/2019 70-67-31100

          Total 714946: 1,352.96 1,352.96

53815

US TRACTOR & HARVES P38775 MOWER BLADE 03/05/2019 301.98 .00 10-71-36303

          Total 53815: 301.98 .00

53865

USA BLUE BOOK 833633 MONITOR 03/08/2019 121.74 .00 60-66-36426

          Total 53865: 121.74 .00



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     19

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

717696

VANTAGE POINT CORPO IC101577 SONICWALL 03/13/2019 1,427.99 .00 60-66-36425

VANTAGE POINT CORPO IC101740 NETGEAR VPN SUBSCRI 03/31/2019 201.99 .00 10-47-35700

          Total 717696: 1,629.98 .00

55200

VERIZON WIRELESS 9826406781 MONTHLY SVC 03/18/2019 475.61 475.61 03/29/2019 60-66-34700

VERIZON WIRELESS 9826939540 MONTHLY SVC 03/25/2019 72.78 72.78 04/05/2019 10-71-34700

          Total 55200: 548.39 548.39

57205

WAGNER EQUIPMENT C 4M7025 CYLINDER 03/01/2019 255.38 .00 10-64-36200

WAGNER EQUIPMENT C S04C0703069 CREDIT 03/01/2019 255.38- .00 10-64-36200

          Total 57205: .00 .00

704344

WAGNER, COREY 02192019 PER DIEM 02/19/2019 .00 .00 10-51-38100

WAGNER, COREY 03202019 TRAINING REIMBURSEM 03/20/2019 1,050.00 1,050.00 03/22/2019 10-51-38100

          Total 704344: 1,050.00 1,050.00

717837

WAL-MART 03042019 H HOGAN CR-2019-0008  03/04/2019 50.00 50.00 03/08/2019 10-35-00000

          Total 717837: 50.00 50.00

57218

WAL-MART BUSINESS 906000022787 HARD DRIVE 03/01/2019 53.00 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 906000307463 MEDICINE 03/01/2019 9.94 .00 60-66-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 906000392282 PAPER SUPPLIES 03/01/2019 55.82 .00 60-66-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 906600756335 CELEBRATE CHILDREN F 03/07/2019 96.26 .00 10-51-35900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 906600833837 AMMUNITION 03/07/2019 71.08 .00 10-51-22600

WAL-MART BUSINESS 907300038110 MAILERS 03/14/2019 .00 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 907300302888 SUPPLIES 03/14/2019 20.09 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 907400192893 WATER 03/15/2019 226.86 .00 10-64-23500

WAL-MART BUSINESS 90740042580 WATER 03/15/2019 240.47 .00 10-64-23500

WAL-MART BUSINESS 907900303275 FLASH DRIVE 03/20/2019 52.80 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 908500370842 TABLE 03/26/2019 42.44 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 908600353820 HARD DRIVE 03/27/2019 189.90 .00 10-51-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS 908600872610 COFFEE 03/27/2019 39.97 .00 10-71-21400

WAL-MART BUSINESS 908700411827 STATIONARY 03/28/2019 3.98 .00 10-73-21400

WAL-MART BUSINESS 908800684966 MULTIMETER 03/29/2019 23.61 .00 10-48-22900

WAL-MART BUSINESS CR907400442580 CREDIT 03/15/2019 240.47- .00 10-64-23500

          Total 57218: 885.75 .00

701456

WESTERN SECURITY LL 596815 ALARM MONITORING 03/31/2019 90.00 .00 21-87-35800

WESTERN SECURITY LL 596855 MONITORING SERVICES 03/31/2019 255.00 .00 10-50-35800

          Total 701456: 345.00 .00

717916

WESTON, TYLOR 03292019 1/2 PRICE COACHING RE 03/29/2019 87.50 87.50 04/05/2019 10-34-95600



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     20

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

          Total 717916: 87.50 87.50

715846

WHITE, LIZ 03272019 REIMB EXPENSE 03/27/2019 22.00 22.00 03/29/2019 10-45-33800

          Total 715846: 22.00 22.00

716908

WILDERMUTH, KRISTA 03052019 PER DIEM 03/05/2019 109.00 109.00 03/15/2019 10-48-38100

          Total 716908: 109.00 109.00

705372

WILLIAMS EQUIPMENT 21229 BELT 03/19/2019 102.76 .00 10-64-36100

          Total 705372: 102.76 .00

62025

XEROX CORPORATION 096311477 METER USAGE 03/06/2019 310.02 .00 10-51-39700

          Total 62025: 310.02 .00

62415

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 50840MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 115.00 115.00 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 54179MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 55.52 55.52 04/05/2019 10-64-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 55665MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 45.60 45.60 04/05/2019 10-64-34400

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57032MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 8,546.19 8,546.19 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57033MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 10,005.25 10,005.25 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57039MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 204.99 204.99 04/05/2019 10-72-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57620MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 88.62 88.62 04/05/2019 10-64-34300

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57678MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 46.11 46.11 04/05/2019 10-64-34400

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 57694MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 48.16 48.16 04/05/2019 70-67-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 58022MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 46.37 46.37 04/05/2019 10-71-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 58023MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 71.60 71.60 04/05/2019 10-64-34400

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 58294MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 33.45 33.45 04/05/2019 10-71-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 58630MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 37.81 37.81 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 59126MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 72.29 72.29 04/05/2019 10-64-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 59149MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 17.84 17.84 04/05/2019 10-71-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 59545MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 48.16 48.16 04/05/2019 10-64-34400

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60024MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 355.08 355.08 04/05/2019 10-75-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60025MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 287.65 287.65 04/05/2019 10-72-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60027MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 645.08 645.08 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60029MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 340.19 340.19 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60038MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 1,074.06 1,074.06 04/05/2019 10-50-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60047MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 60.14 60.14 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60050MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 266.12 266.12 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60057MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 341.39 341.39 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60072MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 47.82 47.82 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60137MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 37.38 37.38 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60139MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 51.16 51.16 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60170MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 140.03 140.03 04/05/2019 21-87-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60185MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 41.06 41.06 04/05/2019 10-64-34400

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60201MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 33.45 33.45 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 60695MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 68.01 68.01 04/05/2019 10-64-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 62404MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 48.42 48.42 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 62449MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 41.83 41.83 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 62457MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 43.20 43.20 04/05/2019 10-71-34100



City of Craig Payment Approval Report - W/GL Account Page:     21

Report dates: 3/1/2019-3/31/2019 Apr 05, 2019  06:03PM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount Amount Paid Date Paid GL Acct #

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 63572MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 134.64 134.64 04/05/2019 10-64-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 63711MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 25.15 25.15 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 64192MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 85.54 85.54 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65153MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 584.15 584.15 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65158MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 57.40 57.40 04/05/2019 10-64-36100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65162MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 288.02 288.02 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65175MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 1,182.41 1,182.41 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65382MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 229.42 229.42 04/05/2019 50-65-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65414MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 250.64 250.64 04/05/2019 10-71-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65415MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 152.78 152.78 04/05/2019 70-67-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI 65492MAR19 MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 54.92 54.92 04/05/2019 60-66-34100

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRI STREETLIGHTSMA MONTHLY SVC 03/28/2019 9,416.79 9,416.79 04/05/2019 10-64-34300

          Total 62415: 35,866.89 35,866.89

          Grand Totals:  389,200.60 243,835.51

                        Dated:  __________________________________________

               City Council:  __________________________________________

City Finance Director:  __________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Summary report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Invoice Detail.GL Period = 0319



AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

APRIL 9, 2019 

 

 

6:30 pm ~ Council Meeting 

Please note that action (including final action) may be taken on any or all of the 

following items: 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Approval of minutes from 

 March 26, 2019 meeting   

 

3. Approval of March 2019 bills 

 

4. Approval of agenda 

 

5. Public Comment regarding agenda items and consent agenda 

 
 Note: Regular City Council meeting agendas and council packets are posted on the City’s      

website to keep City residents informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the 

community.   This Public Comment time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on 

matters that are listed on this Council Meeting agenda.  Each speaker is allocated three (3) 

minutes to speak.  Speakers may not cede their time to another speaker. If your comments 

concern an item that is not on this agenda, please address the council during the public comment 

period at the end of the agenda. Comments should be limited to matters within the jurisdiction of 

the City. The City Council can only take action on matters that are on the Agenda, but may place 

matters brought to their attention at this meeting on a future agenda for consideration. If you have 

documents to present to the City Council, please provide a minimum of eight (8) copies.             

 

6. Presentations 

    

7. Consent Agenda 

 
Note: The Consent Agenda consist of proposed actions on business matters which are 

considered routine and for which approval is based on previously approved City policy or 

practice. The Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion to “Approve the Consent 

Agenda” and Council Members will vote without debate.  Council Members may move to 

remove a Consent Agenda matter for any reason and request that it be handled separately for 

discussion and consideration. Matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed on the 

agenda as an item of “Other Business” for discussion and consideration.    



 

8.   Public Hearing 

  

9.  Other Business 

 

A. Resolution No. 9 (2019) ~ a resolution supporting the Grant Application 

for a Local Parks and Outdoor Recreation Grant from the State Board of 

the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of Breeze 

Park Development Project Phase II. 

 

B. Approval of YVEA Fiber Easement and authorization for the Mayor to 

sign on behalf of the City. 

  

10.   Staff Reports 

 

A. February & March 2019 monthly Police reports 

 

11.   City Manager/City Attorney Reports 

 

12.   Public Comment 

 

13.   Council Reports 

 

14.   Adjourn 

 



 

1 

 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 26, 2019 

MINUTES  

 

Mayor John Ponikvar brought to order at 6:30 p.m. the second regular meeting of the Craig City 

Council for the month of March 2019.   In addition to Mayor Ponikvar, those present were 

Councilmembers Chris Nichols, Jarrod Ogden, Andrea Camp, Tony Bohrer, Derek Duran. 

Councilman Joe Bird was absent. Staff present were City Manager Peter Brixius, Finance Director 

Bruce Nelson, City Attorney Sherman Romney, Building Official Marlin Eckhoff, Chief of Police 

Jerry Delong, Road and Bridge Director Randy Call, Water/Wastewater Director Mark 

Sollenberger, Parks and Recreation Manager Ryan Dennison and Deputy City Clerk Gina Duran. 

 

All participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the minutes from the 

February 26, 2019 meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the minutes from the 

March 11, 2019 special meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the agenda as 

presented.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

There was Public Comment given from resident Nadja Rider on the topic of monochloramine, 

asking if this topic would be discussed at this meeting.  

 

Rebecca Warren and Sherri Cure with Memorial Regional Health-Open Heart Advocates 

presented to council a Proclamation for approval proclaiming the week of March 24-30, 2019 as 

“No More Week”.  Councilman Ogden moved with a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve 

the proclamation proclaiming the week of March 24-30, 2019, as “No More Week”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Carol Taylor, Safe Care Provider & Connection 4 Kids member, and Trish Snyder with 

Connection 4 Kids presented to council a Proclamation to proclaim the month of April as the 

“Month of the Young Child”. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Duran 

to approve the proclamation proclaiming the month of April as the “Month of the Young Child”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Corporal Grant Laehr and Chief Jerry Delong with the City of Craig Police Department 

presented a Canine Team Proposal to council. Total 2019 costs are already budgeted for, will 

request the remaining expense in the 2020 budget process. 

 

Councilman Duran moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to approve the Consent Agenda 

which included the approval of a Special Events Permit from the Craig Chamber of Commerce 

for the Mule Deer Foundation Dinner to be held on April 27, 2019 at the Moffat County 

Fairgrounds Pavilion. No cause shown for denial.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 



 

2 

 

Finance Director Nelson presented for Public Hearing and Comment Ordinance No. 1084 (2019) 

~ a supplemental appropriation ordinance to carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments 

not accomplished in 2018 into the 2019 budget. Mayor Ponikvar opened the Public Hearing 

regarding Ordinance 1084. Finance Director Bruce Nelson offered comments regarding Ordinance 

1084. Being no other comments, the public hearing was closed.  

 

City Manager Brixius presented for Public Hearing and Comment Ordinance No. 1083 (2019) ~ 

an ordinance for the city of Craig, Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig 

Municipal Code to revise the employee step program and cost of living increase language. Mayor 

Ponikvar opened the Public Hearing regarding Ordinance 1084. City Manager Brixius offered 

comments regarding Ordinance 1083. Being no other comments, the public hearing was closed.  

 

Mayor Ponikvar presented the second reading for Ordinance No. 1084 (2019) ~ a supplemental 

appropriation ordinance to carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments not accomplished 

in 2018 into the 2019 budget. Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to 

approve the second reading of Ordinance 1084 (2019), a supplemental appropriation ordinance to 

carry over budgeted 2018 projects or commitments not accomplished in 2018 into the 2019 budget. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

  

Mayor Ponikvar second reading for Ordinance No. 1083(2019) ~ an ordinance for the city of Craig, 

Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig Municipal Code to revise the employee 

step program and cost of living increase language. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilwoman Camp to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 1083(2019), an ordinance 

for the city of Craig, Colorado amending a portion of Chapter 2.20 of the Craig Municipal Code 

to revise the employee step program and cost of living increase language. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

Parks and Recreation Manager Dennison presented for approval, a bid for a 15-passenger van for 

the Parks and Recreation department from Cook Ford in the amount of $35,117.00. After further 

discussion, Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Duran to approve the 

purchase of a 15-passenger van for the Parks and Recreation department without a trade-in in the 

amount of $41,617.00 from Cook Ford. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Parks and Recreation Department  

½ Ton 4 Door Cab Short Bed Pickup in the amount of $22,940.00. Councilman Nichols moved 

with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the purchase of a ½ Ton 4 Door Cab Short Bed 

Pickup in the amount of $22,940.00 from Victory Motors. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Refuse department Cab & Chassis 

in the amount of $126,357.00. Mayor Ponikvar asked for a motion to approve the purchase of a 

Cab & Chassis for the Refuse department in the amount of $126,357.00. Councilman Nichols 

moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve the purchase of a Cab & Chassis for the 

Refuse department in the amount of $126,357.00 from Faris Machinery. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for a Refuse department a Front Load 

Collection body in the amount of $126,985.00. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman Ogden to approve the bid for a Refuse department a Front Load Collection body from 

Faris Machinery in the amount of $126,985.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motions carried. 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented for approval a bid for the following vehicles & 

equipment: 

 

 1 Ton Pickup Truck with single cab in the amount of $23,295.00. Councilwoman Camp 

moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the bid to Victory Motors for a 1 

Ton Pickup Truck with single cab in the amount of $23,295.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

  

 Portable Air Compressor in the amount of $15,990.00. Councilwoman Camp moved with 

a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve a bid for a Portable Air Compressor from Faris 

Machinery in the amount of $15,990.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 1 Ton Single Cab & Chassis with Dual Rear Wheels in the amount of $20,632.00. 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve a bid for a 1 

Ton Single Cab & Chassis with Dual Rear Wheels from Cook Ford in the amount of 

$20,632.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 Flatbed with Hoist for a1 Ton Cab & Chassis in the amount of $8,872.00. Councilman 

Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve a bid for a Flatbed with 

Hoist for a1 Ton Cab & Chassis from Kois Brothers in the amount of $8,872.00. Ayes: 6. 

Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 Three Wheel Broom Street Sweeper with Belt Conveyor in the amount of $237,684.00. 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve a bid for a 

Three Wheel Broom Street Sweeper with Belt Conveyor from Faris Machinery in the 

amount of $237,684.00. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Building Official Eckhoff presented to council the process of blighted property demolitions and 

asked for approval to pay for pre-demolition testing on blighted properties. Councilman Nichols 

moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to approve the language in the demolition letters as 

presented that will go out to the property owner. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Road and Bridge Director Call presented to council Community Improvement Project Estimates 

that were put together by the Community Improvement Committee. Councilwoman Camp 

moved with a second by Bohrer to approve the appropriation of $150,682.50 for the Murdoch’s 

Island and Victory Way/4th Street Community Improvement projects. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion 

carried. 

 

Water/Wastewater Director Sollenberger gave his monthly water/wastewater report for the month 

of February 2019. 

 

 



 

4 

 

Finance Director Nelson gave his month-end Financial Report for February 2019. 

 

City Manager Brixius provided information regarding 3 grants that the city has been awarded so 

far this year. We have received an $8,500.00 from the State Internet Portal Authority to create a 

phone ap with trail maps. $150,000.00 grant for Breeze Park & we were granted the DOLA Tier 

1 Grant in the amount of $200,000.00 for the Roundbottom Improvement Project. The Small 

Business Grant program is underway with information being sent out to all the businesses that 

generate sales tax this week with info on where to find information and how to apply. 

 

City Attorney Romney gave an update on the election to council. There was a discussion about 

when the new Council Members and Mayor will be sworn in. Romney gave the recommendation 

to wait and see what the certified results are before deciding on when to swear-in the new Council 

and Mayor. Also discussed the write-in ballot processes with the group. 

 

A quick presentation was given during public comment by Brycen Davis & Alison Jones about 

the Inspire to Lead Summit that’s available for kids 12-18 years of age. Other public comments 

were given by Ken Wergin who gave thanks to the City Staff and Council for taking action at 

tonight’s meeting, Dave Beard who asked for something to be done about speeding that’s taking 

place on Washington Street. Comments and questions regarding the use of Monochloramine were 

made/asked by Daryl Sparks, Dave Wallace, Cindy Porter, Nadja Rider, Janie Morely, Katie Lair 

and Are King. 

 

Rick Huggins, PhD, PE Drinking Water Engineer for SGM gave a presentation and answered 

questions that were asked during public comment regarding chloramine as treatment to comply 

with the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment minimum distribution system 

chlorine residual rule. 

 

At this time, City Council discussed various meetings and events in which they participated or that 

will take place soon. Councilman Nichols gave praise to the Road and Bridge department and all 

city staff for doing such a great job and working hard. Also thanked Peter for all he has done for 

the city so far. 

 

Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to retire to executive session 

pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402 (4)(f) to discuss personnel matters concerning the City Attorney 

position. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

City Council members and City Attorney Romney returned from executive session. Mayor 

Ponikvar announced that City Council was back in open session. Councilman Ogden moved with 

a second by Councilman Bohrer to approve a 2-year employment agreement with the City Attorney 

Romney in the amount of $96,000.00 per year, 20 hours per week, which would include an 

insurance package in the amount of $22,200.00 and a pension package in the amount of 

$11,520.00. A new contract will be written to reflect these terms. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Being no further business, Councilman Bohrer moved with a second by Councilman Ogden to 

adjourn the meeting. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 9 (2019) 
 

Supporting the Grant Application for a Local Parks and Outdoor Recreation Grant 
from the State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund for the 
completion of Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for the 
Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. And if the grant is awarded, the City of Craig 
supports the completion of the project.  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has requested $150,000.00 from Great Outdoors Colorado to fund 
the Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CRAIG CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CRAIG THAT: 
 
Section 1: The Craig City Council of the City of Craig strongly supports the application and 

has appropriated matching funds for a grant with Great Outdoors Colorado.  
 
Section 2:  If the grant is awarded, the Craig City Council of the City of Craig strongly 

supports the completion of the project.  
 
Section 3:  The Craig City Council of the City of Craig authorizes the expenditure of funds 

necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any Grant awarded.  
 
Section 4:  The project site is owned by the City of Craig and will be owned by the City of 

Craig for the next 25 years. 
 
Section 5:  The Craig City Council of the City of Craig recognizes that as the recipient of a 

Great Outdoors Colorado Local Government grant the project site must provide 
reasonable public access.  

 
Section 6: The Craig City Council of the City of Craig will continue to maintain Breeze Park 

in a high quality condition and will appropriate funds for maintenance in its 
annual budget. 

 
Section 7: If the grant is awarded, the City of Craig hereby authorizes David Pike, Craig 

Parks & Recreation Director or Peter Brixius, Craig City Manager to sign the 
grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 

 
Section 8:  This resolution to be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Craig, Colorado, 
at a regular meeting held on the 9th day of April, 2019. 
 
        ________________________ 
        John Ponikvar Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________ 
Liz White, City Clerk 



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC.  

TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND ACCESS EASEMENT 
 
1. GRANT.  For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY 

OF CRAIG, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation (“Grantor”) hereby grants to YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC 
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado Cooperative Association, 2211 Elk River Road, Colorado 80487, and to its 
successors and assigns (“Grantee”) a Telecommunications and Access Easement (this “Easement”) for the purposes 
described below and which is more particularly described as:  

 
An easement 20 feet in width, 10 feet either side of the centerline of Grantee’s facilities as presently constructed 
located in:  
 

Northwest ¼ Section 36, Township 7 North, Range 91 West of the 6th P.M., County of Moffat, State of 
Colorado on, over, and across Grantor’s property as described in the Moffat County Records at Reception 
No. 20140926. Said easement generally shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
Notwithstanding the depiction of the easements granted herein in Exhibit A, utilities as installed to become centerline of 
said easement. If the original construction does not completely cross the above-described land, this easement shall also 
apply to the future extension of the line completely across said property.      
 
The easements granted herein include such additional area as is necessary to properly guy, angle and dead-end structures 
located on the Easement. The Easement grant includes the right to construct overhead and/or underground 
communications systems or a combination thereof for the use and benefit of Grantee and its employees, agents, 
licensees, invitees, contractors, and lessees. 
 

2. EASEMENT USE.  Grantor grants this Easement to Grantee for the erection, construction, reconstruction, replacement, 
modification, up rating, upgrading, removal, maintenance, and operation of telecommunications lines or system, 
including poles, monopoles, cross-arms, wires, cables, equipment, fixtures, structures and systems for the transmission 
or provision of commercial and non-commercial telecommunications services, advanced services and fiber optic 
services (including without limitation the transmission of voice, video and data signals and the leasing, licensing or 
other transfer of use of dark fiber strands), upon or under the Easement. This Easement includes the right of ingress and 
egress across the above property to construct, inspect and make such repairs, changes, alterations, improvements, 
removal from, substitutions and additions to facilities located within the Easement as Grantee may from time to time 
deem advisable, including by way of example and not by way of limitation: (a) the right to increase or decrease the 
number of poles, monopoles, fixtures, guy wires, conduits, wires, cables, transformers, vaults, sectionalizers, enclosures 
and pedestals; (b) the right, at Grantee’s option, to replace any above ground facilities with underground facilities used 
for the same or similar purposes and to reconstruct, replace, remove, maintain and upgrade such underground facilities. 
 

3. NON-EXCLUSIVITY, PERPETUITY.  This Easement shall be non-exclusive, perpetual, and shall run with the land.   
  

4. GRANTOR COVENANTS.  Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall not within the Easement (a) erect or construct 
any building or other structure (including but not limited to mobile homes or travel trailers); (b) store flammable or 
explosive materials; (c) stack any objects or materials; (d) conduct fueling operations; (e) construct, install or operate 
above ground mechanical irrigation facilities which could make contact with Grantee’s wires, poles, or facilities; (f) 
drill wells or conduct mining operations; (g) alter the grade of the ground surface; (h) undertake or allow any action that 
might impair the lateral or subjacent support for Grantee’s facilities or access roads; nor undertake or allow any action 
or  use that might interfere with Grantee’s uses or endanger or damage Grantee’s facilities. 

 
Upon receipt of written notice from Grantee identifying material or property deemed by Grantee to interfere with the 
safe operation or maintenance of Grantee’s lines or facilities, Grantor shall remove the material or property within 10 
days.  If there is a failure to so remove the material within 10 days, Grantee may remove the material or property and 
collect the costs of such removal from Grantor. 
 
Grantor agrees to obtain Grantee’s prior written consent before granting any subsequent easement encumbering the 
Easement or access to the Easement. 
 

5. GRANTOR WARRANTS.  Grantor warrants that: (a) Grantor is the owner of the land on which the Easement is 
situated, (b) Grantor has full authority to grant the Easement, (c) the individual or individuals signing this Easement 
have full authority to sign the Easement on behalf of the Grantor; and (d) the rights granted herein are subject only to 
easements of record and mineral rights of record in third parties.   
 

6. GRANTEE MAINTENANCE.  Grantee may at any time cut, remove, clear away, trim and control, by chemical 
means, machinery or otherwise, trees, brush and shrubbery whether on the Easement or adjacent thereto which now or 
may at any time, in the exclusive opinion of Grantee, interfere with the safe construction, operation and maintenance of 
the telecommunication lines and facilities, and the equipment and structures used in connection therewith.  Grantee may 



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 

also install and use gates in all of Grantor’s fences which now or may in the future cross or be adjacent to the Easement. 
Grantee shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to avoid damage to Grantor's real property, fences, crops, and other 
personal property located on or adjacent to the Easement. 
 

7. GRANTEE FACILITIES.  All structures, poles, wires and other facilities installed on, across, and under the Easement 
at Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the sole discretion of Grantee; provided, 
however, that any fences, gates, culverts or ditches constructed by Grantee may be conveyed to Grantor on such terms 
and conditions and at such times as may be mutually agreed upon by Grantor and Grantee.   
 

8. NON-USE, TERMINATION.  Non-use or limited use of this Easement shall not prevent Grantee from thereafter 
making full use of the Easement.  

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS.  The provisions of this Easement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

licensees, lessees, contractors, agents, heirs, executors, successors and assigns of the Grantor and Grantee. The rights, 
privileges and obligations granted and created hereunder may be assigned, licensed or otherwise conveyed or 
transferred, in whole or in part. Grantee shall be entitled to all remedies at law or in equity to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement or to recover damages for breach. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable or not run with the land, such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement. The headings and captions in this Agreement are used for 
convenience only and shall not be construed to affect its meaning. 

 

GRANTOR signs this Telecommunications and Access Easement on _____________, 2019 

 
 

 
       X              X         

  
         Name:                      Name:        

 
         Title:                                    Title:        
 
 
 

 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this                  day of                                                        , 2019 by 
                                   as                           for the City of Craig, as Grantor(s)  
 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 
 
 
 

   
Notary Public 
 
 

[ S E A L ] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this                  day of                                                       , 2019 by 
                                 as                           for the City of Craig, as Grantor(s)    
 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 
 
 
 

   
Notary Public 
 
 

[ S E A L ] 
 



































Resolution No. 9 (2019) 
 

Supporting the Grant Application for a Local Parks and Outdoor Recreation Grant 
from the State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund for the 
completion of Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for the 
Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. And if the grant is awarded, the City of Craig 
supports the completion of the project.  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has requested $150,000.00 from Great Outdoors Colorado to fund 
the Breeze Park Development Project Phase II. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CRAIG CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CRAIG THAT: 
 
Section 1: The Craig City Council of the City of Craig strongly supports the application and 

has appropriated matching funds for a grant with Great Outdoors Colorado.  
 
Section 2:  If the grant is awarded, the Craig City Council of the City of Craig strongly 

supports the completion of the project.  
 
Section 3:  The Craig City Council of the City of Craig authorizes the expenditure of funds 

necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any Grant awarded.  
 
Section 4:  The project site is owned by the City of Craig and will be owned by the City of 

Craig for the next 25 years. 
 
Section 5:  The Craig City Council of the City of Craig recognizes that as the recipient of a 

Great Outdoors Colorado Local Government grant the project site must provide 
reasonable public access.  

 
Section 6: The Craig City Council of the City of Craig will continue to maintain Breeze Park 

in a high quality condition and will appropriate funds for maintenance in its 
annual budget. 

 
Section 7: If the grant is awarded, the City of Craig hereby authorizes David Pike, Craig 

Parks & Recreation Director or Peter Brixius, Craig City Manager to sign the 
grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 

 
Section 8:  This resolution to be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Craig, Colorado, 
at a regular meeting held on the 9th day of April, 2019. 
 
        ________________________ 
        John Ponikvar Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________ 
Liz White, City Clerk 







WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC.  

TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND ACCESS EASEMENT 
 
1. GRANT.  For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY 

OF CRAIG, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation (“Grantor”) hereby grants to YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC 
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado Cooperative Association, 2211 Elk River Road, Colorado 80487, and to its 
successors and assigns (“Grantee”) a Telecommunications and Access Easement (this “Easement”) for the purposes 
described below and which is more particularly described as:  

 
An easement 20 feet in width, 10 feet either side of the centerline of Grantee’s facilities as presently constructed 
located in:  
 

Northwest ¼ Section 36, Township 7 North, Range 91 West of the 6th P.M., County of Moffat, State of 
Colorado on, over, and across Grantor’s property as described in the Moffat County Records at Reception 
No. 20140926. Said easement generally shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
Notwithstanding the depiction of the easements granted herein in Exhibit A, utilities as installed to become centerline of 
said easement. If the original construction does not completely cross the above-described land, this easement shall also 
apply to the future extension of the line completely across said property.      
 
The easements granted herein include such additional area as is necessary to properly guy, angle and dead-end structures 
located on the Easement. The Easement grant includes the right to construct overhead and/or underground 
communications systems or a combination thereof for the use and benefit of Grantee and its employees, agents, 
licensees, invitees, contractors, and lessees. 
 

2. EASEMENT USE.  Grantor grants this Easement to Grantee for the erection, construction, reconstruction, replacement, 
modification, up rating, upgrading, removal, maintenance, and operation of telecommunications lines or system, 
including poles, monopoles, cross-arms, wires, cables, equipment, fixtures, structures and systems for the transmission 
or provision of commercial and non-commercial telecommunications services, advanced services and fiber optic 
services (including without limitation the transmission of voice, video and data signals and the leasing, licensing or 
other transfer of use of dark fiber strands), upon or under the Easement. This Easement includes the right of ingress and 
egress across the above property to construct, inspect and make such repairs, changes, alterations, improvements, 
removal from, substitutions and additions to facilities located within the Easement as Grantee may from time to time 
deem advisable, including by way of example and not by way of limitation: (a) the right to increase or decrease the 
number of poles, monopoles, fixtures, guy wires, conduits, wires, cables, transformers, vaults, sectionalizers, enclosures 
and pedestals; (b) the right, at Grantee’s option, to replace any above ground facilities with underground facilities used 
for the same or similar purposes and to reconstruct, replace, remove, maintain and upgrade such underground facilities. 
 

3. NON-EXCLUSIVITY, PERPETUITY.  This Easement shall be non-exclusive, perpetual, and shall run with the land.   
  

4. GRANTOR COVENANTS.  Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall not within the Easement (a) erect or construct 
any building or other structure (including but not limited to mobile homes or travel trailers); (b) store flammable or 
explosive materials; (c) stack any objects or materials; (d) conduct fueling operations; (e) construct, install or operate 
above ground mechanical irrigation facilities which could make contact with Grantee’s wires, poles, or facilities; (f) 
drill wells or conduct mining operations; (g) alter the grade of the ground surface; (h) undertake or allow any action that 
might impair the lateral or subjacent support for Grantee’s facilities or access roads; nor undertake or allow any action 
or  use that might interfere with Grantee’s uses or endanger or damage Grantee’s facilities. 

 
Upon receipt of written notice from Grantee identifying material or property deemed by Grantee to interfere with the 
safe operation or maintenance of Grantee’s lines or facilities, Grantor shall remove the material or property within 10 
days.  If there is a failure to so remove the material within 10 days, Grantee may remove the material or property and 
collect the costs of such removal from Grantor. 
 
Grantor agrees to obtain Grantee’s prior written consent before granting any subsequent easement encumbering the 
Easement or access to the Easement. 
 

5. GRANTOR WARRANTS.  Grantor warrants that: (a) Grantor is the owner of the land on which the Easement is 
situated, (b) Grantor has full authority to grant the Easement, (c) the individual or individuals signing this Easement 
have full authority to sign the Easement on behalf of the Grantor; and (d) the rights granted herein are subject only to 
easements of record and mineral rights of record in third parties.   
 

6. GRANTEE MAINTENANCE.  Grantee may at any time cut, remove, clear away, trim and control, by chemical 
means, machinery or otherwise, trees, brush and shrubbery whether on the Easement or adjacent thereto which now or 
may at any time, in the exclusive opinion of Grantee, interfere with the safe construction, operation and maintenance of 
the telecommunication lines and facilities, and the equipment and structures used in connection therewith.  Grantee may 



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 

also install and use gates in all of Grantor’s fences which now or may in the future cross or be adjacent to the Easement. 
Grantee shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to avoid damage to Grantor's real property, fences, crops, and other 
personal property located on or adjacent to the Easement. 
 

7. GRANTEE FACILITIES.  All structures, poles, wires and other facilities installed on, across, and under the Easement 
at Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the sole discretion of Grantee; provided, 
however, that any fences, gates, culverts or ditches constructed by Grantee may be conveyed to Grantor on such terms 
and conditions and at such times as may be mutually agreed upon by Grantor and Grantee.   
 

8. NON-USE, TERMINATION.  Non-use or limited use of this Easement shall not prevent Grantee from thereafter 
making full use of the Easement.  

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS.  The provisions of this Easement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

licensees, lessees, contractors, agents, heirs, executors, successors and assigns of the Grantor and Grantee. The rights, 
privileges and obligations granted and created hereunder may be assigned, licensed or otherwise conveyed or 
transferred, in whole or in part. Grantee shall be entitled to all remedies at law or in equity to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement or to recover damages for breach. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable or not run with the land, such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement. The headings and captions in this Agreement are used for 
convenience only and shall not be construed to affect its meaning. 

 

GRANTOR signs this Telecommunications and Access Easement on _____________, 2019 

 
 

 
       X              X         

  
         Name:                      Name:        

 
         Title:                                    Title:        
 
 
 

 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:         WO#  33290  
  
Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc. 
Attn: ROW Department           
2211 Elk River Road                                                                                         
Steamboat Springs, CO 80486 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this                  day of                                                        , 2019 by 
                                   as                           for the City of Craig, as Grantor(s)  
 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 
 
 
 

   
Notary Public 
 
 

[ S E A L ] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this                  day of                                                       , 2019 by 
                                 as                           for the City of Craig, as Grantor(s)    
 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires ____________________. 
 
 
 

   
Notary Public 
 
 

[ S E A L ] 
 




























































	1A 190409a_amended
	2M 190326
	3A March 2019 Bills
	COUNCIL 31 MAR 19
	April 9, 2019
	Attached is the Scheduled Payment Report for Month and Year to date totals ending:

	PAR 31 MAR 2019

	4.09.19 Council packet
	1A 190409a
	2M 190326
	9A Reso No. 9 - Breeze Park 2019
	9B YVEA Fiber Easement_City of Craig
	______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
	YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
	1. GRANT.  For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY OF CRAIG, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation (“Grantor”) hereby grants to YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado Cooperative...
	An easement 20 feet in width, 10 feet either side of the centerline of Grantee’s facilities as presently constructed located in:
	The easements granted herein include such additional area as is necessary to properly guy, angle and dead-end structures located on the Easement. The Easement grant includes the right to construct overhead and/or underground communications systems or ...
	2. EASEMENT USE.  Grantor grants this Easement to Grantee for the erection, construction, reconstruction, replacement, modification, up rating, upgrading, removal, maintenance, and operation of telecommunications lines or system, including poles, mono...
	3. NON-EXCLUSIVITY, PERPETUITY.  This Easement shall be non-exclusive, perpetual, and shall run with the land.
	4. GRANTOR COVENANTS.  Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall not within the Easement (a) erect or construct any building or other structure (including but not limited to mobile homes or travel trailers); (b) store flammable or explosive materials;...
	Upon receipt of written notice from Grantee identifying material or property deemed by Grantee to interfere with the safe operation or maintenance of Grantee’s lines or facilities, Grantor shall remove the material or property within 10 days.  If ther...
	Grantor agrees to obtain Grantee’s prior written consent before granting any subsequent easement encumbering the Easement or access to the Easement.
	5. GRANTOR WARRANTS.  Grantor warrants that: (a) Grantor is the owner of the land on which the Easement is situated, (b) Grantor has full authority to grant the Easement, (c) the individual or individuals signing this Easement have full authority to s...
	6. GRANTEE MAINTENANCE.  Grantee may at any time cut, remove, clear away, trim and control, by chemical means, machinery or otherwise, trees, brush and shrubbery whether on the Easement or adjacent thereto which now or may at any time, in the exclusiv...
	7. GRANTEE FACILITIES.  All structures, poles, wires and other facilities installed on, across, and under the Easement at Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the sole discretion of Grantee; provided, however, that any ...
	8. NON-USE, TERMINATION.  Non-use or limited use of this Easement shall not prevent Grantee from thereafter making full use of the Easement.
	9. MISCELLANEOUS.  The provisions of this Easement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the licensees, lessees, contractors, agents, heirs, executors, successors and assigns of the Grantor and Grantee. The rights, privileges and obl...
	ACKNOWLEDGMENT
	Witness my hand and official seal.
	My commission expires ____________________.
	Notary Public
	[ S E A L ]
	Witness my hand and official seal.
	My commission expires ____________________.
	Notary Public
	[ S E A L ]

	10A Police Report - February 2019

	9A Reso No. 9 - Breeze Park 2019
	9B YVEA Fiber Easement_City of Craig
	YVEA Fiber Easement
	9B YVEA Fiber Easement_City of Craig
	______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
	YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC.
	1. GRANT.  For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY OF CRAIG, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation (“Grantor”) hereby grants to YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado Cooperative...
	An easement 20 feet in width, 10 feet either side of the centerline of Grantee’s facilities as presently constructed located in:
	The easements granted herein include such additional area as is necessary to properly guy, angle and dead-end structures located on the Easement. The Easement grant includes the right to construct overhead and/or underground communications systems or ...
	2. EASEMENT USE.  Grantor grants this Easement to Grantee for the erection, construction, reconstruction, replacement, modification, up rating, upgrading, removal, maintenance, and operation of telecommunications lines or system, including poles, mono...
	3. NON-EXCLUSIVITY, PERPETUITY.  This Easement shall be non-exclusive, perpetual, and shall run with the land.
	4. GRANTOR COVENANTS.  Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall not within the Easement (a) erect or construct any building or other structure (including but not limited to mobile homes or travel trailers); (b) store flammable or explosive materials;...
	Upon receipt of written notice from Grantee identifying material or property deemed by Grantee to interfere with the safe operation or maintenance of Grantee’s lines or facilities, Grantor shall remove the material or property within 10 days.  If ther...
	Grantor agrees to obtain Grantee’s prior written consent before granting any subsequent easement encumbering the Easement or access to the Easement.
	5. GRANTOR WARRANTS.  Grantor warrants that: (a) Grantor is the owner of the land on which the Easement is situated, (b) Grantor has full authority to grant the Easement, (c) the individual or individuals signing this Easement have full authority to s...
	6. GRANTEE MAINTENANCE.  Grantee may at any time cut, remove, clear away, trim and control, by chemical means, machinery or otherwise, trees, brush and shrubbery whether on the Easement or adjacent thereto which now or may at any time, in the exclusiv...
	7. GRANTEE FACILITIES.  All structures, poles, wires and other facilities installed on, across, and under the Easement at Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the sole discretion of Grantee; provided, however, that any ...
	8. NON-USE, TERMINATION.  Non-use or limited use of this Easement shall not prevent Grantee from thereafter making full use of the Easement.
	9. MISCELLANEOUS.  The provisions of this Easement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the licensees, lessees, contractors, agents, heirs, executors, successors and assigns of the Grantor and Grantee. The rights, privileges and obl...
	ACKNOWLEDGMENT
	Witness my hand and official seal.
	My commission expires ____________________.
	Notary Public
	[ S E A L ]
	Witness my hand and official seal.
	My commission expires ____________________.
	Notary Public
	[ S E A L ]


	10A Police Report Feb & Mar 2019
	10A Police Report - February 2019
	Council Report - March 2019




